
Village of Oreana
Board of Trustees

Meeting Agenda

Meeting Date and Time: August 17, 2021 @ 6:00 PM
Meeting Location: 407 S. View St, Oreana, IL

Call to Order

Role Call

Public Comment

Consent Agenda
● Approval of Treasurer’s Report for July 2021
● Bills for August 2021
● Approval of Regular Board Meeting Minutes from the 07-20-2021 meeting and  the special meeting on

08-10-2021
● Attorney hourly rate change

Old Business

New Business
● Opening, accepting, or rejecting one or all bids for the 2010 Ford F-350 by sealed bid auction

● An Ordinance authorizing and providing for the issue of General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate

Revenue Source), Series 2021, of the Village, for the purpose of refunding certain outstanding bonds of the

Village, providing for the levy of a direct annual tax sufficient to pay such principal and interest if the pledged

revenues are insufficient to make such payments, and authorizing the sale of said bonds to the purchaser

thereof

● Approval to initiate phase 1 of the West Plains Drainage Project

● Consideration and/or Approval to initiate the process to apply for the Safe Routes to School Grant

● Consideration and/or Approval for a facility use request from Small Town Living

● Consideration and/or Approval for a sponsorship request from Small Town Living

Call for Closed Session
● The purchase or lease of real property for the use of the public body, including meetings held for the purpose

of discussing whether a particular parcel should be acquired.

Reconvene Regular Meeting

Adjournment



   
 
          
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Mayor Aaron Keathley.  
  

Roll Call 

Trustee White Present Trustee Ward Present 
Trustee Creamer Present Trustee Runyen Absent 
Trustee Hiser Absent Trustee Guntle Present 
Mayor Keathley Present Attorney 

Weatherford 
Absent 

Clerk Kirby Absent Treasurer Koszesza  Absent 

 

Mayor Keathley declared a quorum present.  
Public Comment:   None 

Old Business:  None 

New Business:   

Mayor Keathley provided an update on the Village Finances, the water tower, and the overall 
operations of the Village. 

Mayor Keathley sought input from the trustees with regard to the upcoming year.  Trustee 
Guntle provided a list of his priorities and a general discussion followed. The consensus was 
that the board would work together to handle the business of the individual committees.  

Matt Foster from Chastain presented an overview of the West Plains drainage issues and 
several proposed solutions were discussed. No action was taken. 

 

Trustee Ward made a motion, seconded by Trustee Guntle to adjourn A voice vote was taken.  
Yes-4, No-0. Mayor Keathley declared the motion carried and the meeting adjourn. 

Dated this  10th day of August 2021 

_ 

 

 

Meeting Minutes 
SPECIAL Meeting of the Village Board 
Tuesday, Aug 10, 2021   
6:00 PM 



 

__________________________________________________ 

Anne Kirby, Village Clerk 

Approved: 

___________________________________________________ 

Aaron Keathley, Mayor 

 



   
 
          
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Mayor Aaron Keathley.  
  

Roll Call 

Trustee White Present Trustee Ward Present 
Trustee Creamer Present Trustee   
Trustee Hiser Absent Trustee Guntle Present 
Mayor Keathley Present Attorney 

Weatherford 
Present 

Clerk Kirby Present Treasurer Koszesza  Present 

 
Mayor Keathley appointed Judy Runyen to fill the vacant position. 

 Trustee Ward made a motion, seconded by trustee Guntle to approve Mayor Keathley’s 
appointment of Judy Runyen to the Trustee Position. 

A roll call vote was taken 

 Trustee White  Yes Trustee Ward Yes  
Trustee Creamer                  Yes Trustee                    
Trustee Hiser                  Yes Trustee Guntle Yes 

Mayor Keathley declared the motion carried.  

 

Clerk Kirby swore Trustee Runyen in, and she took her seat at the board table. 

Trustee Hiser present at 6:03 p.m. 

Mayor Keathley declared a quorum present.  

Consent Agenda:  
A motion was made by Trustee Ward, seconded by Trustee Guntle to accept the Consent 
Agenda: 

IEPA Pay request # 1 ($264,725.36 

 

Meeting Minutes 
Regular Meeting of the Village Board 
Tuesday July 20, 2021   
6:00 PM 



Income: $65,149.06 
Expense: $25,132.15 
 
Minutes from the July 20, 2021 
 

A general discussion was held. 

 A roll call vote was taken.  

 Trustee White  Yes Trustee Ward Yes  
Trustee Creamer                  Yes Trustee Runyen                   Yes 
Trustee Hiser                  Yes Trustee Guntle Yes 

 

Mayor Keathley declared Motion Carried. 

Administrative Reports:   
Mayor - None 

Clerk – None 

Treasurer – Written Report Provided 

Attorney – None 

Engineer- None 

Police – Written Report Provided 
Public Comment:   None 

Old Business:  Matt Foster here to explain and update on water tower project. 

New Business:  None 

The first item on the agenda is the Approval of Change Order #1 (Maguire Iron, Water Tower 
Project). 

A motion was made by Trustee Runyen seconded by Trustee Ward to approve Change Order #1 
(Maguire Iron, Water Tower Project). 

A general discussion was held. 

 A roll call vote was taken.  

 Trustee Creamer  Yes Trustee Ward Yes  
Trustee White                   Yes Trustee Runyen                   Yes 
Trustee Hiser                   Yes Trustee Guntle Yes 

 



Mayor Keathley declared Motion Carried. 

The second item on the agenda is the Approval of Authorization to sell 2010 Ford F-350 by 
sealed bid auction. 

A motion was made by Trustee Ward seconded by Trustee Guntle to Authorization to sell 2010 
Ford F-350 by sealed bid auction. 

A general discussion was held. 

 A roll call vote was taken.  

 Trustee Creamer  Yes Trustee Ward Yes  
Trustee White                   Yes Trustee Runyen                   Yes 
Trustee Hiser                   Yes Trustee Guntle Yes 

 

Mayor Keathley declared Motion Carried. 

The third item on the agenda is the Approval of a Summer Mosquito Abatement Program. The 
cost is $625.00 per application. 

A motion was made by Trustee Ward seconded by Trustee White to approve a Summer 
Mosquito Abatement Program. The cost is $625.00 per application. 

A general discussion was held. 

 A roll call vote was taken.  

 Trustee Creamer  Yes Trustee Ward Yes  
Trustee White                   Yes Trustee Runyen                   Yes 
Trustee Hiser                   Yes Trustee Guntle Yes 

 

Mayor Keathley declared Motion Carried. 

The fourth item on the agenda is the Discussion and/or Approval of the purchase/lease of Case 
321F Compact Wheel Loader (including trade-in/sale of current Case Tractor). This would be a 3 
year lease. Cost after trade in would be $55,000.00. 

A motion was made by Trustee Ward seconded by Trustee Runyen to approve the 
purchase/lease of Case 321F Compact Wheel Loader (including trade-in/sale of current Case 
Tractor). This would be a 3 year lease. Cost after trade in would be $55,000.00 for a 3 year 
lease. 

A general discussion was held. 

 A roll call vote was taken.  

 Trustee Creamer  Yes Trustee Ward Yes  
Trustee White                   Yes Trustee Runyen                   Yes 



Trustee Hiser                   Yes Trustee Guntle Yes 
 

Mayor Keathley declared Motion Carried 

The last item on the agenda is the Street Committee Meeting Schedule. Mayor Keathley 
discussed having a meeting Tuesday August 10, 2021 for a Study Session. 

No Action was taken at this time. 

Adjournment 

A motion was made by trustee Ward seconded by Trustee Creamer. 

A voice vote was taken.  Yes-6, No-0. Mayor Keathley declared the motion carried and the 
meeting adjourn. 

Dated this day of July 20, 2021 

___________________________________________________ 

Anne Kirby, Village Clerk 

Approved: 

___________________________________________________ 

Aaron Keathley, Mayor 

 





Page 1 of 2 
 

        MEMORANDUM 
 
 

To:   Village of Oreana President and Board of Trustees 
From:   Matthew B. Foster, PE, PLS 
Date:   August 13, 2021 
cc:  None 
Re:   2021 Safe Routes to School Grant Cycle 
 

Honorable President and Trustees, 

  The  Illinois  Department  of  Transportation  (IDOT)  has  announced  they  will  be  accepting 
applications for Safe Routes to School (SRTS) grants until September 30, 2021. The last time IDOT accepted 
applications for this funding was in 2019. A few brief points regarding the current application cycle are as 
follows: 

x There is $12,000,000 in Federal Funding available (compared to $5,500,000 in 2019). 
x Maximum grant award is $250,000 (compared to $200,000 in 2019). 
x Funding is an 80 Fed/20 Local split. 
x Construction  and  construction  observation  costs  are  eligible  for  reimbursement.  Design 

engineering and ROW/easement acquisition are not eligible. 

  The Village’s project build sidewalk out to and along Rt. 48 that was unsuccessfully submitted for 
an ITEP grant last year has aspects that would qualify for the SRTS funding. I have attached a copy of the 
project location map and cost estimate that was included in the ITEP application. If we were to submit the 
project as it currently stands, anticipated project costs would be as follows: 

ITEM  TOTAL COSTS  FEDERAL SHARE  VILLAGE SHARE 
PE I (Design PDR)  $28,400  N/A  $28,400 
ROW/Easements  $0  N/A  $0 
PE II (Construction Plans)  $22,050  N/A  $22,050 
Construction  $305,200  $244,160  $61,040 
PE III (Construction Observation)  $44,200  $5,840  $38,360 
PROJECT TOTALS  $399,850  $250,000  $149,850 

Requested Actions Tonight: 

1. Authorize Chastain to assemble an application for the 2021 SRTS Grant application cycle. 

2. Decide if we want to keep the project scope as‐is or decrease the scope to maximize the Federal 
Share percentage and/or decrease the total Village share of the project. The current Federal share 
percentage of the total project is around 63%. The size of the project can be decreased some to 
increase the Federal share to approximately 67% of the total project cost. One issue we do have 
to address is ROW/easement acquisition. This task is not eligible for reimbursement and needs to 
be complete in order to submit an application. The project as currently scoped, may need some 
temporary easements. We will need review the project carefully and eliminate any sections that 
may need easements  in order  to make  the project eligible. We will also need  to evaluate  the 
sidewalk going back towards the school along CH 20 for ADA compliance to see if any work needs 
to be added into the project. 



MEMORANDUM 
RE: 2021 Safe Routes to School 
August 13, 2021 

Page 2 of 2 
 

3. Decide who will be responsible for the various public input aspects of the application process. I 
have attached the second page of the infrastructure project application for your review. It lists six 
public  involvement  activities  that  will  enhance  the  Village’s  application.  It  does  say  they  are 
“optional but highly recommended”. In our experience with these types of grants, that is code for 
do most of them but missing one or two won’t hurt. 

4. Decide who will be responsible for coordinating this application with the school district. Two items 
on  the  public  input  process  are  best  performed  through  the  school,  the  Parent  Surveys  and 
Student Tallies (see attached) and the School Wellness Policy. The school will also need to provide 
a resolution or letter of support of the project. 

Next Steps (if authorized to proceed with an application): 

1. Contact the school and begin coordination of public input activities (TBD). 

2. Hold a public meeting during the September 21 Village Board meeting. 

3. Approve  a  Resolution  of  Financial  Commitment  and  Letter  of  Support  for  the  project  at  the 
September 21 Board meeting. 

  Thank you for the opportunity to serve the Village in this matter, I look forward to hearing your 
input  and  answering  any  questions  you may  have  soon.  If  you  have  any  further  questions  after  the 
meeting, please feel free to call me at either (217) 429‐8800x1165 (W) or (217) 454‐7330 (C) or email me 
at mfoster@chastainengineers.com. 

 



ATTACHMENT 6 
PAGE 1



5 North Country Club Road | Decatur, IL 62521 
P: 217.422.8544 | F: 217.422.0398 | www.chastainengineers.com 

ATTACHMENT 5 
PAGE 1



Illinois Safe Routes to School Funding Application 
Funding Cycle 2021 

 

Infrastructure Project Application 

  2  8/12/2021 

Public Input Process (these processes are optional but highly recommended and 
will be considered in scoring) 
 

 

3DUHQW 6XUYH\V DQG 6WXGHQW 7DOOLHV   <HV   1R �$WWDFK UHVXOWV� 
.H\ 6WDNHKROGHUV ,QWHUYLHZHG"   <HV   1R �$WWDFK ZULWWHQ LQWHUYLHZV� 
3XEOLF 0HHWLQJ +HOG"   <HV   1R 'DWH�        �$WWDFK GRFXPHQWDWLRQ� 

&RPPXQLW\ ³:DONDELOLW\´ &RQGXFWHG"  <HV   1R 
 
'DWH�        �$WWDFK SKRWRV� 
 

&RPPXQLW\ ³%LNHDELOLW\´ &RQGXFWHG"  <HV   1R 
 
'DWH�        �$WWDFK SKRWRV� 
 

6FKRRO :HOOQHVV 3ROLF\ ,QFRUSRUDWHG"  <HV   1R �$WWDFK ZULWWHQ SROLF\� 
 
 
 
 

Infrastructure Improvements included in Project 
 
All infrastructure improvements will be required to meet ADA and other applicable requirements. 
 

  
 

1. Sidewalks   4.   Pedestrian and Bicycle Crossing     
  1HZ 6LGHZDON       Improvements 
  6LGHZDON 5HSDLU      &URVVLQJ 
  6LGHZDON *DS &ORVXUH      1HZ�8SJUDGHG 6LJQV 
  6LGHZDON :LGHQLQJ      0HGLDQ 5HIXJH 
  6LGHZDON &XUE      5DLVHG &URVVLQJ 
  6LGHZDON &XUE 5DPS      6LJKW 'LVWDQFH ,PSURYHPHQWV 
          
2. Traffic Calming/Speed Reduction    5.   On Street Bicycle Facilities    
   6SHHG %XPS�+XPS�7DEOH         :LGHQHG 2XWVLGH /DQHV�6KRXOGHUV    
   5DLVHG &URVVLQJ         *HRPHWULF ,PSURYHPHQWV    
   0HGLDQ 5HIXJH�&HQWHU &URVVLQJ         &KDQQHOL]DWLRQ    
   1DUURZHG 7UDIILF /DQH         7UDIILF 6LJQV    
           3DYHPHQW 0DUNLQJV    
3. Traffic Control Devices          7XUQLQJ /DQHV    
   1HZ�8SJUDGHG 6LJQV         5RDGZD\ 5HDOLJQPHQW    
   1HZ�8SJUDGHG 7UDIILF 6LJQDOV        
   1HZ 3DYHPHQW 0DUNLQJV        
 

 
1HZ 7UDIILF 6WULSLQJ   6.   Off Street Bicycle and Pedestrian    
,Q�5RDGZD\ &URVVLQJ /LJKW         Facilities    

   )ODVKLQJ %HDFRQV          0XOWL�8VH %LNH�3HG 7UDLO   
   %LNH 6HQVLWLYH 6LJQDO $FWXDWLRQ          
 

 
'HYLFH   7.   Secure Bicycle Parking Facilities    
3HGHVWULDQ $FWLYDWHG 6LJQDO 
8SJUDGHV 

          %LNH 5DFNV    

   3HGHVWULDQ &RXQWGRZQ 6LJQDOV         6DIHW\ /LJKWLQJ    
   3HUPDQHQWO\ 0RXQWHG 6RODU 

3RZHUHG 6SHHG )HHGEDFN 6LJQV 
        &RYHUHG %LNH 6KHOWHUV    


























